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INM Technologies Private Limited
Part -1 - Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March-2018

(All amount are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note As at
FARTICUEARS 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17 1-Apr-16
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment 2 164,232,944 169,204,657 168,995,142
(b) Capital Work in progress - . 6,800,118
(c) Other Intangible Assets 3 652,549 44,034 29,616
(d) Financial Assets
i)Investments 4 100,000 B .
ii)Others 5 3,681,139 3,624,382 3,457,220
(e) Other Non-curent Assets 6 1,379,123 192,244 795.980
Total Non-Current Assets 170,045,755 173.065,317 180,078.076
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 646,066 418,638 21,836
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8 24,552,160 -
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 596,642 1,138,901 517,901
(ii) Loan and Advances 10 = - -
(c) Other Current Assets 11 12.156.564 3.091,176 1,249,188
Total Current Assets 37,951,432 4,648,715 1,788,925
TOTAL ASSETS 207,997.186 177,714,032 181,867,001
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12A 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
(b) Other Equity 12B (198.603.599) (103.435.224) (10.391,981)
Total Equity (183,603.599) (88.435.224) 4,608,019
B) LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a)Provisions 13 1,820,104 1,080,263 o
(b)Deferred Tax Liability 14 6,253,882 6,545,044 (9.823)
(c)Other Non-current Liability 15 325.376.700 230.001,700 153,543,700
Total Non-Current Liabilities 333,450,686 237,627,007 153.533.877
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 16 2,914,127 2,854,423 15,047,912
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17 40,351,178 19,057,338 4,397,268
(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 9,749,827 4,408,372 2,231,070
(c) Short Term Provisions 19 5,134,967 2,202,116 2.048.855
Total Current Liabilities 58,150,099 28,522,249 23,725,105
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 207,997,186 177,714,032 181,867,001

Note Nos 01 to 45 forms an integral part of financial statements
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INM Technologies Private Limited
Part - II - Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March-2018

(All amount are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the Year For the Period
Particulars Note ended ended For the Year ended
31stMar 2018 31st Dec 2017 31st March 2017
Revenue
a) Revenue from operations 20 154,680 77,378
b) Other operating revenues 21 43.000.000 .
43,154,680 77,378 -
Other income 22 334,661 91,923 299,917
Total Revenue 43.489,341 169.301 299,917
Expenses
a) Employee Benefits Expense 23 41,357,601 29,035,921 31,916,789
b) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 20,191,155 14,952,880 18,035,029
¢) Finance Cost 24 25,437,621 - 17,512,920
d} Other Expenses 25 52,131,822 39,828,170 19,323,554
Total expenses 139,118,199 83,816,972 86,788,292
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (95,628,858) (83,647,670) (86,488,375)
Extraordinary (Income) / Expense - - -
Profit / (Loss) before tax after extraordinary Item (95,628,858) (83,647,670) (86,488,375)
Tax expense
i) Current Income tax - - -
it) Less: Mat Credit Entitlement - - 2
iii) Add: Deferred Tax (334.762) 834.005 6.554.867
(334,762) 834,005 6,554,867
Profit / (Loss) for the Period (95.294,096) (84.481,675) (93.043,242)
Other Comprehesive Income . z =
A)ltems that will not be reclassed profit or loss
- Acturial Gain / (Loss) for defined benefit plan (net) 125,721 -
Total Comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (95.168.375) (84.481.675) (93.043,242)
Basic and Diluted EPS per share of Rs.10/- each (Refer Note
No.33)
a) Before Prior Period Adjustment 35 (63.45) (33.00) (50.35)
b) After Prior Period Adjustment 35 {63.45) (33.00) (62.03)
Note Nos 01 to 45 forms an integral part of financial statements
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INM Technologies Private Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (95,628.,858) (86,488,375)
Less: Adjustments
Interest received 236,626 219,098
Unrealized Exchange Gain 1,946 =
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets . 65,166
(95.867,429) (86,772,639)
Add: Adjustments
Provision for Gratuity 910,486 1,082,496
Provision for Dividend on Cumulative Redeemable preference shares 25,437,621 17,512,920
Notional Rent under IND AS 220,398 220,398
Balances written off 68,285 70,638
Depreciation & Amortisation 20,191,155 18.035.029
Operating profit before working capital changes & Other Adjustments (49,039,484) (49.851,158)
Adjustiments for Increase / (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables 65,239 (13,969,199)
Other financial liabilities - E:
Other Current Liabilities & Short Term Provisions 4,129,199 (595,158)
Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Receivables
[nventories (227,428) (396,802)
Trade Receivables (24,555,207) .
Other financial Assets 179,868 51,936
Other Non-current Assets (1,186,879) 603,736
Short Term Loans & Advances & Other Current Assets (5.054.620) {2,062.386)
(75,689.311) (66.219,031)
Less: Income Taxes (Net) (4,300.000) =
Net Cash flow from Operating activities (79.989,311) (66.219,031)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Incl.CWIP) (15,827,955) (11,393,680)
Sale of fixed assets . 1,775,710
Investment in Equity Shares of subsidiary (100,000} .
Interest received
Dividend Income . x
Net cash flow (used in) Investing Activities {15,927,955) {9.617,970)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Long Term Borrowings -
Share Application money pending allotment =
Increase in Share Capital . .
Proceeds from [ssue of Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share Capital 95,375,000 76,458.000
Net cash flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities 95,375,000 76,458,000
Net Increase/(decrease)in Cash and Cash Equivalents (542,266) 621,000
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 1.138.901 517.901
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the vear 596,635 1,138,901
Compaonents of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2017-18 2016-17
Cash on Hand 69,446 386,720
Cash at Banks
a) In Current Account 527,196 752,181
Exchange gain on Foreign currency in hand (71 :
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 596,635 1,138,901

Cash Flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as per [nd AS-7 “Statement of Cash flows " as prescribed under

Companies ([ndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Innovative Nano & Micro Technologies Private Limited incorporated in the FY 2014-15.
Company has a vision to serve the humanity using Nano technology products. Company
drives with strategic intent “Innovations for all generations” INM technologies profile mainly
contains: High tech know how, competencies and expertise to meet industrial needs and
strengthen industrial competitiveness in Asia, Europe, and USA. Expertise in the field of the
materials Engineering Pharmaceutical Technology and service in advanced technology and
product development. Scale up process for the developed micro/Nano materials. Based on
our research activity and our experience in the chemistry, materials science and
engineering, pharmaceutical technology sectors, we develop and integrate nanostructured
materials in the products of our customers of various industrial sectors. State of the art
facility for synthesis, characterization and analytical testing of Nano products, trained
manpower for process design & monitoring has been established and includes 9
departments in the Company involving major disciplines namely Biotechnology, Bio-medical,
Analytical and Pharmaceutical, Chemicals, Polymers, Coatings, Electronics, Electronics and
Smart Materials. INM Technologies has initiated the process to obtain 1SO 90001
Certification from prestigious TUV Group. Necessary application has been submitted for
DSIR recognition and DSIR team inspection has been 5" May 2018.

Company has invested in 10000 share of Rs 10 each in INM Nuvent Paints Private Limited
which is its 100% Subsidiary i.e., Wholly owned subisidiary. Objective for forming this
company are as under :

1. To carry on the business of manufacturers, Traders, Exporters & Importers, Research and
development of and dealers in various types of Paints, chemicals, chemicals compounds
(organic and inorganic) in all forms, and chemical products of any nature and kind
whatsoever, and all byproducts and joint products thereof.

2. To carry on business as chemical engineers, analytical chemists, Research and
development, importers, exporters, manufacturers of and dealers in heavy chemicals, acid
alkalies, petro chemicals, chemical compounds and chemicals of all kinds (solid, liquid and
gaseous ), drugs, medicines, pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, Products manufactured out of
Nano technology, tannins, tannin extracts, essences, solvents, plastics of all types, dye stuff,
intermediates, textile auxillaries, cellophanes, color dyes, paints, varnishes, vat and other
organic dyestuff, chemical auxillaries, disinfectants, insecticides, fungicides, deodorants, bio-
chemicals and pharmaceuticals, medicinal, sizing, bleaching, photographical and other
preparation and articles.

3. To manufacture, deal in or process, or engage in Research and development of styrene,
butadiene, ethylene, alcohol, petroleum fractions and other chemical substances of all kinds,
to manufacture compounds, synthetics and other substances, basic intermediate or
otherwise from chemical substances of all kinds.

4. To manufacture, buy, sell, import, export, deal or engage or in Research and
development, in chemical, chemical compounds, chemical products, acids, alkalies,
petrochemicals, chemical medicines, drugs, pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, tannin, tannin
extracts, essences, solvents, plastic of all types, dyes, dye stuff, intermediate, paints,
varnishes, disinfectants, insecticides, fungicides, deodorants, bio-chemicals and sizing,
bleaching and photographic materials.
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1. Basis of Preparation

i. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 read together with the Rule 4 of Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules 2016 to the extent applicable and the other relevant provisions of the Act,
pronouncements of the regulatory bodies applicable to the company.

ii. The financial statements have been prepared on going concern and accrual basis.
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the
financial statements.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 21/5/2018.

ii. The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with
applicable accounting principles and Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) in India
and as notified under the Companies Act 2013 and the other relevant provisions of
the Act.

iv. The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and
accrual basis of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities as
specified and defined benefit plans which have been measured at actuarial valuation
as required by relevant Ind AS.

Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current. Based on the nature
of product and activities of the Company and their realization in cash and cash equivalent,
the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities.

1.1 Significant Accounting Policies

a) Critical accounting Estimates and Judgements:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of
operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could
differ from these estimates. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
- Measurement of defined benefit obligation (Note 1.1 (h))
- Estimation of Useful life of Property, plant and equipment and intangibles (Note
~1.10)
mmm— - Recognition of deferred taxes (Note 1.1(0))
ZLoNNE Ang %y, - Estimation of impairment (Note 1.1(e))
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b)

d)

___I_Emplo"'ee Benefits:

- Estimation of provision and contingent liabilities (Note 1.1(p))

Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation:

i. Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises of purchase price
and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use.

i. Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their
intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental
expenses and attributable interest.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iv. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on ascertain useful life of assets
under Straight Line Method (SLM) prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies
Act-2013, with exception of those assets whose useful life is ascertain by the
management.

v. The Company follows the policy of charging depreciation on pro-rate basis on
the assets acquired or disposed off during the year.

vi. Transition to Ind AS:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the
deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost
includes any expenditure directly attributable on making the asset ready for its
intended use.

Intangible assets are amortized over their useful life.

Impairment of Assets:

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each balance sheet date are
reviewed for impairment if any indication of impairment exists.

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its
recoverable value. Recoverable value being higher of value in use and fair value less
cost of disposal. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected
over the balance useful life of the assets. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense in the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired.

Inventory:

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is
determined on FIFO basis. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all
costs of purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
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Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A
liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Contribution plans

Contribution towards Provident Fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution schemes as the Company does not carry any
further obligations, apart from the Contributions made on a monthly basis.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided on the basis of an
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each year.
Presently, the gratuity is non-funded.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains
and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other
comprehensive income (OCI). Net interest expense (income) on the net defined
liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net
defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

g) Leases
Operating Lease
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the leased item are classified as operating leases. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the statement Profit & Loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

h) Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

(i) Sale of products:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the
contract, there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The Company retains no effective
control of the goods transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership and
no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be
derived from the sale of goods. Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume
rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are
levied on sales such as sales tax, value added tax, etc.

i) Other Income
i. Interest Income is recognised using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method.
i Dividend income is recognised when right to receive is established.

i) Foreigﬁ Currency Transactions/Translations:
“aung _.--._,.‘.'_In:' ial Recognition
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k)

Foreign Currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to
the foreign currency amount, the exchange rate between the reporting currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the Transaction.

Translations
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

Exchange Differences
The exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in the previous financial statements, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise as
income or as expense.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred. Further, interest earned out of borrowed funds from temporary investments
is reduced from the borrowing cost.

Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(I) Financial Asset:

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case
of financial assets not recorded at fair value through P&L, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, purchase or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place are recognised on
the trade date i.e. the date that the company commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified as
measured at:

e Amortised cost
e Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

(a) Financial Asset measured at amortized cost

Q7
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Financial Assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate (EIR) method.
The EIR amortization is recognised as finance income in the statement of
Profit & Loss. The company while applying above criteria has classified the
following at amortized cost:

(a) Trade receivables
(b) Loans
(c) Other financial assets

(b) Financial Assets Measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are
recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income
measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if any are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial Asset are measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss if it does not
meet the criteria for classification as measured at amortized cost or at
FVTOCI. All fair value changes are recognised in the statement of Profit &
Loss.

Equity Instruments

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are
initially measured at fair value through Profit & Loss Account, the group may,
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI
or FVTPL.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred and
the transfer qualifies for Derecognition. On Derecognition of a financial asset
in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount (measured on the
date of recognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in the statement
of Profit & Loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model by adopting the simplified approach using a provision matrix
reflecting current condition and forecasts of future economic conditions for
measyrement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial

~.assets and credit risk exposure:
AN
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(a) Financial Assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized
cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
halance

(b) Financial Assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI

(c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17.

(d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset

(e) Loan commitments which are not measured at FVTPL
(f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at FVTPL
(IN) Financial Liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any transaction cost
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except financial
liabilities at FVTPL that are measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost:

Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability
is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between the initial amount and the maturity amount.

The company is classifying the following under amortized cost
- Borrowings from banks
- Borrowings from others
- Trade payables
- Other Financial Liabilities

Derecoghnition:

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished
i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelied or

expires.
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m) Taxes on Income:
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax.
i. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Tax Act.

i. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured
based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilized.

iii.  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of
profit and loss account as current tax. The Company recognises MAT credit
available as an asset to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e., the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the
Company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax
under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to
the statement of profit and loss account and shown as “MAT Credit
Entitlement”.

n) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. If effect of the time
value of money is material, provisions are discounted using an appropriate discount
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but are
disclosed in the notes.

Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources,
if any, in respect of contingencies/claims/litigations against the Company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of the pending matters with accuracy.

o) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (‘EPS”) data for its
ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which includes all stock options granted to employees, if any.

p) Government Grant
The Company recognises government grants only when there is reasonable
assurance that the conditions attached to them will be complied with, and the grants
will be received. Government grants received in relation to assets are presented in
the balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred income. Grants related to
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q) Cash flow Statement

r

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income
or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Recent accounting developments

Standards Issued but not Effective

Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the following new and amendments to
Ind Ass which the Group has not applied as they are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2018.

Ind AS 115 establishes a single model for entities to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue
recognition standard, Ind AS 18 “Revenue” when it becomes effective.

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that, an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods and services to customers in an account that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for these goods or
services. The new standard also requires enhanced disclosures about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on its
financial statements

Ind AS 21 - The effect of changes in Foreign Exchanges rates

The amendment has been incorporated in Ind AS 21 as Appendix B, which clarifies on
the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix is applicable for accounting periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2018. The appendix explains that the date of the
transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial
recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for
each payment or receipt.

The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements.

Amendment to Existing issued Ind AS

The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:
i. Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

ii. Ind AS 40 - Investment Property

iii. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements.
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INM Technologies Private Limited

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

4 Investments
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Un-quoted Equity shares (At cost)
1. Investment in wholly owned subsidiary 100,000
10,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each in INM Nuvent
Paints Pvt Ltd -
Total 100,000 - .
Carrying value of unquoted investments 100,000 =
5 Other financial Assets
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Advances other than capital advances
i) Security Deposit (unsecured, considered good) (Refer Note No 28.}
a) Rental deposits 3,069,217 2,832,592 2,613,494
b) Miscellaneous Deposits 328,040 231,000 256,000
ii) Pre-Paid Expense 283.882 560,790 587.726
3,681,139 3,624,382 3,457,220
6  Other Non- Curent Assets
Particulars 31/03/2018 | 31/3/2017 | 01/04/2016
Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good (Refer Note No 28.) 1,379,123 192,244 795,980
TOTAL 1,379,123 192,244 795,980
7 Inventories
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
a) Stores and spares
i) Others 646,066 418,638 21,836
b) Packing materials - = z
TOTAL 646,066 418,638 21,836
8 Trade Receivable
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Trade Receivable (Refer Note No 28.) 24,552,160 -
TOTAL 24,552,160 - -
9 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
a) Cash on hand 69,446 386,720 13,156
b) Balance with banks in current account 527,196 752,181 504,745
TOTAL 596,642 1,138,901 517,901
10 Loanand Advances
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Capital advances for Fixed Assets (Refer Note No 28)
Unsecured, considered good - - -
TOTAL - - -
11 Other Current Assets
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Pre-Paid Expense 403,686 459,605 239,764
GST - Input (Net) 2,366,612 - 36,124
IGST refund receivable 4,006,800 -
Advance to Suppliers / others (Refer Note No 28.) 730,100 576,687 257,299
Advance to Employee for Expense - 297,514 -
Service Tax Receivable - 1,757,370 716,001
Other 349,366 = -
TDS deducted by Party 4,300,000 = -
- TOTAL 12,156,564 3,091,176 1,249,188
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INM Technologies Private Limited

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Share Capital

As at As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Authorised share Capital
Equity shares
1500000 Rs. 10/- each par value 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000

Issued subscribed & fully paid up
Equity shares
15,00,000 (15,00,000) Rs. 10/- each par value 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000

TOTAL 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
{a) Reconciliation of the number of shares.

. As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Particulars
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
Equity Shares 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000 15,000,000
Shares issued during the year
Equity Shares -

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,500,000 15,000,000 1,500,000 | 15,000,000

(b) Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Particulars = :
Nos % of Holding Nos % of Holding
1) Shilpa Medicare Ltd 1,125,000 75 1,125,000 75
2) Dr.A.R. Phani 375,000 25 375,000 25

Rights and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has issued Equity shares having face value of Rs.10/- per share. Each Share Holder is eligible for one vote pes
share. In case dividend is proposed by the Company it will be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. In the event o
liquidation, the equity share holders are eligible to receive balance assets remaining after repayment to all the preferentia
share capital holders, in the in proportion to their equity holding.
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13 Other long term provisions
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Provision for Gratuity 1,820,104 1,080,263 -
TOTAL 1,820,104 1,080,263 -
14 Deferred Taxes (Net)
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Deferred Tax Liability 6,449,389 6,555,317 -
(On account of timing differences due to depreciation)
Deferred Tax Asset (195,507) (10,273) (9,823)
(Effect of expenditure debited to statement of Profit and
Loss Account in the current year but allowable for tax
purposes in the subsequent years.)
TOTAL 6,253,882 6,545,044 (9.823)
15 Other Non-current liability
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Preference share capital 325,376,700 230,001,700 153,543,700
325,376,700/ 230,001,700| 153,543,700
16 Trade Payables
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
(a) Trade Paybles (Refer Note No 28.) 2,914,127 2,818,723 9,108,138
(b) Others - -
(i) Creditors for Capital Goods (Refer Note No 28) - 35.700 5.939.774
TOTAL 2,914,127 2,854,423 15,047,912
17 Other Financial Liabilities
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Accumulated dividend on Redemable Cumulative Pref
Shares. 40,351,178 19,057,338 4,397,268
40,351,178 19,057,338 4,397,268
18 Other Current Liabilities
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Service Tax Payable - 10,392 5,458
Tax deduction at Source 1,883,974 682,422 732,988
VAT & Professional Tax payable 13,514 7,000 129,361
Books overdraft - = 107,555
DDT payable on Pref Shares dividend 7,852,339 3,708,558 855,708
8% Pref. Share application money pending allotment - - 400,000
TOTAL 9,749,827 4,408,372 2,231,070
19 Short Term Provisions
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017 01/04/2016
Employee Benefit Liability 2,925,496 1,828,239 1,548,875
Provision For Expenses 2,054,323 250,125 499,980
Provident Fund/Gratuity Payable 155,148 123,752 -
TOTAL 5,134,967 2,202,116 2,048,855
20 Revenue from Operations
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
Sales of Product 154,680 =
TOTAL 154,680 -
21 Other operating Income
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
Other operating Income 43,000,000 =
TOTAL 43,000,000 -
-"&@uug And;-*
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Other Income

Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
Profit on Sale of Assets . 65,166
Exchange Loss Gain (Net) 98,036 15,653
Others 236,626 219,098
TOTAL 334,661 299,917
Employee Benefits Expense
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
Salaries & Wages 33,689,127 24,496,889
Contribution To Provident Fund/Labur Welfare Fund 921,245 722,137
Staff Welfare Expenses 897,339 675,863
Directors Remuneration 4,939,404 4,939,404
Contribution To Gratuity 910,486 1,082,496
TOTAL 41,357,601 31,916,789
Finance Cost
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
Dividend on Cumulative 8% Redemable Pref Shares
(Incl. Dividend Distribution tax) 25,437,621 17.512,920
TOTAL 25,437,621 17,512,920
Other expense
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
Power And Fuel 2,946,846 2,265,603
Repairs & Maintenance - d
A)Buildings 1,032,448 705,699
B}Machinery 903,335 188,132
C) Others 36,091 80,320
Rent 4,882,898 4,511,048
Advertisement expense 507,781 .
Traveling And Conveyance 703,360 318,181
Auditor Fees 65,000 27,000
Research & Development Expenses 36,651,883 8,519,259
Transportation Charges 131,948 19,583
Insurance 84,173 86,338
Bank Charges 233,640 100,033
Bad Debts / Accounts Written-Off 68,285 70,638
Vat/ Entry Tax & Profession Tax 30,826 40,920
Professional & Consultancy 773,313 110,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,985,932 2,280,800
Patent Application fees 94,062 =
TOTAL 52,131,822 19,323,554
Payment to Statutory Auditors *
Particulars 31/03/2018 | 31/3/2017
a) Statutory Audit 40,000 20,000
b} Tax Audit 15,000 -
c) Certification 10,000 =
b} Transfer Pricing Audit - 7.000
TOTAL 65,000 27,000
* Excluding GST / Service Tax
Contingent Liabilities
Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
a) Bank Guarantees. / Corporate Guarantee Nil Nil
b} Letter of Comfort. Nil Nil
¢) Claims aginst the Company not acknowledege as Nil Nil
debts.
d) Estimate amount of contract remain to be executed Nil Nil

on account of capital commitments not provided for.
(Capital Commitments)

3 TOTAL
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Balances of Trade Receivables / Trade payables / Advances and Security deposits are
subject to Balance Confirmation.

In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets, have a realisable value in the
utdinary course of business which is not different from the amount al which it is stated.

The Company has not received any intimation from "Suppliers” regarding their status
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence
disclosures relating to amount unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid /
payable under this act cannot be ascertained.

As the company is operating in one segment, segment reporting is not applicable.

Previous year figures have been reclassified wherever necessary

Cash Flow stetement has been prepared under Indirect method as per IND AS-7
"Statement of Cash Flows" as prescribed under Companies(accounting Standard) Rules,
2006.

The Company has taken its R&D facility premises land under Operating lease agreement

from Sri T M Rajkumar (HUF). Total rental paid during the year under Operating leases is
Rs.42,89,500/- (Previous year:Rs. 41,40,000 /-) which has been disclosed as rent paid.

Monthly Rent 31/03/2018 31/3/2017

Due within one year 3,744,400 4,554,000

Due later than one year and not later than five years - 3,744,400
3.744.400 8,298,400

Earning per share

Particulars 31/03/2018 31/3/2017
a) Earning per share (Before Prior Period

Adjustment)

Net Profit after taxes (95,168,375} (75,530,323)
Weighted Average No of Equity shares 1,500,000 1,500,000
Face Value 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted EPS (63.45) (50.35)

b) Earning per share (After Prior Period

Adjustment)

Net Profit after taxes (95,168,375) (93,043,242)
Weighted Average No of Equity shares 1,500,000 1,500,000
Face Value 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted EPS (63.45) (62.03)

Prior period adjustment pertains to the Dividend accrued but not declared on @8% Non-
convertible redemable preference shares for previous year including Dividend distribution
tax payable thereon.
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Employee Benefits

Year ended

Year onded

Partieulars

A1st March, 2018

31st March, 2017

Provident Fund

021,245

721302

Total

921,245

721,202

11} DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN [GRATLITY)

Movement ol Present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation

Year ended

Year ended

315t March, 2018

A1st March, 2017

Obligations at Period Beglnning

Seivice Cost

Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation
[tapefits Settled

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss

Ohligations it Period End

Change in Plan Assets

Pluns Assets at Period Beginning, at Fair value
Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial Gain/(Loss)

Employer Contribution

fenefits Payout

Plians Assets at Period End, at Fair Value
Reconclliation of Present Value of the Obligation and the Fair Value of the Plan Assets:
Closing PBO

Closing Fair value of Plan Assets

Closing Funded Status

Unrecognised actuarial (Gains)/Losses
Net Asset/(Llabllity) Recognlized in the Balance Sheet
Expenses Recognised in the P & L Account
Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss

Net Gratuity Cost

Expelience Adjustment on Plan Assets
Experience Adjustrent oy Plan Lisbilities

1,082,496
828,325
82,161

(19,321)
1,823,661

[169,321)

(169,321)
1,823,661
[1B23,661)
(1, H25.661)

910,486
82,161

[16%,321)
823,326

1,082,496

1,082,496

1,082,496
[1LOBZ:A96)
(1,082,496)

1,082,496

1,082,496

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN [Contd.}

C. Principal Actuarlal Assumptions

Year ended

Year ended

315t March, 2018

315t March, 2017

Interest Rate

Discount rate (based on the maiket yields available on Government bond
it the accounting date with a term that matches that of the Liabilities)
Expected rate of return on assets

Salary escalation (taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion

Al other relevant factors)

Attrition rate of employees

Retirement age of employees (Years)

subyoct to minimum of five years pavable at the time of s

Sensitivity Analysis

rincipal assum

The Sensitivity of the defined bendefit obilsation to changes (n the weighted

759%

0%
13%

3%

731%

0%
10%

SH

Licy

Actuarinl gain/loss is recognised immediately The estimates of salary increase,inflation, promotion, Seniority etc is taken into
secaiiil for the purpose of calculating the provision for gratuity liability based on actuiial valuation. The Company has
vatious schemes (funded/unfunded) for payment of gratuity to all eligible employees calculated at specific no. of days { rar
from 15 days to 1 month) of the last dvawn salary depending upon tenure of service for each year of completed service
AL Upon superannuation or on exil, [11h Rrwise

-

S are 45

Particulars

Year ende

d 31.03.2018

Increase

Detcroase

Biscounit Rute

1,590,004

Salary [ncresse

2076,

1607 300

Attrition rate

1,957,005

182054000

abligaton by 100 basis points, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant

Sensitivity of significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assupmtions used for the valuation of

defined bendefit

Fair value measurement hieratehy

Particulars FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost | Total

31032018

Financial Assets

Cash & Bank RBalance 596,642 596,642
Total 586,642 596,642
Finaneinl Liability

Trade payaliles 2914127 2.914,127
Total 2,914,127 2,914,127
Particuars FVTPL FVTOC! Amortised cost | Total
31.032017

Financial Assets

Cash & Bunk Halance 1.130,901 1,138.901
Total 1,138,901 1,138,901
Financinl Liabity

I'rade payables 2.854.423 2,854,423
Total 2,854,423 2,854,423

* Since all the financial assets & Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, fair value hierarchy is not provided
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The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks such as Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk The Company focuses on minimizing potential adver se elfect on its

financial performance

(A) Market Risk

Market tisk is the visk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices The changes in the values of fianacial assets /liability
may result fiom change in the foreign currency exchange 1ates (Foreign Curiency Risk), change in interest rates (Cash flow & interest rate risk), and change in price of investments (Price

Risk).

(1) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company operates internationally and consequently,the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through importing raw matetials in foreign currency and has no Farward/hedge

agreements.
Particulars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
usp EURD CHF usp EURO
Financial Assets
Other financial assets 175 0 525
Flnancial liabilities
Trade payables 2081 750 1846
(1906) (750) 525 (1846)

(i) Interest Rate Risk
During the period the Company has not paid any interest, hence not exposed to Interest risk

(iii) Price Risk

We have investments in Equity shaies of INM Nuvents Paints Piivate Limted ( 10000 Equity shares of Rs 10 Each) and the same has been shown at amor'tised cost

We have neither shown it at fair value through OCI nor at fair value thiough profit or loss Hence Piice Risk is not applicable

(B} Credit Risk

Credit visk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss The credit risk is arises from its operation
activity primarly from trade 1eceivable and fiom its financial activity Customer credit risk is contiolled by analysis of credit limit and credit worthness of the customer on a continuous

basis to whom the ctedit has been granted

(C)Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encount difficulty in meeting the obligations of its financial liability The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and ensure that funds are available for making liability when they are due, under normal and stiessed condition without incuiring losses and risk

The present available working capital facility is sufficient to meet its current requirment. Accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived. In addition, the Company maintains the following line of

credit facility

Maturity Profile of Financlal Liabilites as on March 31, 2018
Particulars On Demand <01 Year 01t 5 Years > 05 Year
DTrade Pavable 2014127 -
(i1] Other financial labilities 40.351,178
2,914,127 40,351,178
Maturity Profile of Financial Liabilities a5 on March 31, 2017
Particulars O Demand =01 Year 01 to 5 Years > 05 Year
[1)Trade Pavahle 2,854,423
(11} Other financial lshilities 19,057,230
2,854,423 19,057.338
Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to
i) Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide retuins for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
ii) Maintain an optimal capital stiucture to reduce the cost of capital
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet)
Particlars 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
Net Dobt - -
Totul Eeuity 15,000,000 15,000,000
Debr Equity Ratio - .
Income Tax
During the 1eporting period Company has not made any profit hence Income Tax reconcilation not applicable
Movement of Deferred
Particulars Opening Balance Charge {Credit) to Profic Through OCI Closing Balance
& Loss Account
Deferred Tax Liability for the year ended 31, March 18
(On account of timing differences due to depreciation) 6,555,317 (105,928) 1] 6,449,389
Tatal 6,555,317 [105928) - 6,449,389
Deferred Tax Asset for the year ended 31, March 18
(Effect of expenditure debited to statement of Profit and Loss Account in the current year but (10,273) (185,234)
1llowahle for tax purposes in the subsequent years ) {195,507)
6,545,044 (291,162) 6,253,082

Net Liability
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44 The Company has incurred expenditure on R&D activity for the last two years as below.

(Rs.in Lakhs)

Particulars 2015-16
Capital Expenditure

(R&D Equipment Purchased in the respective years) 128483
Recurring Expenditure 51.2
(i.e Salary of R&D manpower, Consumables etc.} )
Total 1336.03

45  All Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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Chartered Accountants
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INM Technologies Private Limited

Part - 1 -Consolidated Balance Sh t31st March-201
(All amount are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)
Note As at As at As at
PARTICULARS 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.16
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment 2 164,232,944 169,204,657 168,995,142
(b) Capital Work in progress + 6,800,118
(c) Other Intangible Assets 3 652,549 44,034 29,616
(d) Financial Assets - - 2
i)Investments 4 - - =
i)Others 5 3,681,139 3,624,382 3,457,220
(e) Other Non-curent Assets 6 1,379,123 192,244 795,980
Total Non-Current Assets 169,945,755 173.065.317 | 180,078,076
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 646,066 418,638 21,836
(b) Financial Assets .
(i) Trade Receivables 8 24,552,160 - s
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 606,652 1,138,901 517,901
(ii) Loan and Advances 10 - - .
(c) Other Current Assets 11 12,158,724 3,091,176 1,249,188
Total Current Assets 37.963.602 4,648,715 1,788,925
TOTAL ASSETS 207,909,357 177,714,032 | 181,867,001
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 12A 15,000,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
(b) Other Equity 12B (198,630.822)| (103.435.223)] (10.391,981)
Total Equity (183.630,822) (88,435,223) 4,608,019
B) LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a)Provisions 13 1,820,104 1,080,263 =
(b)Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 14 6,248,765 6,545,044 (9,823)
(c)Other Non-current Liability 15 325,376,700 230.001,700 153,543,700
Total Non-Current Liabilities 333,445,569 237,627,007 | 153,533,877
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 16 2,851,137 2,854,423 15,047,912
(ii) Other financial liabilities 17 40,351,178 19,057,338 4,397,268
(b) Other Current Liabilities 18 9,749,827 4,408,372 2,231,070
(c) Short Term Provisions 19 5,142,467 2,202,116 2,048,855
Total Current Liabilities 58,094,609 28,522,249 23,725,105
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 207,909,357 177,714,032 | 181,867.001

Note Nos 01 to 39 forms an integral part of financial
statements
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INM Technologies Private Limited

Part - Il - Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March-2018

(All amount are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the Period
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note ended
31.03.2018 2158 Do 2017 31.03.2017
Revenue
a) Revenue from operations 20 154,680 77,378
b) Other operating revenues 21 43,000,000 -
43,154,680 77,378 -
Other income 22 334.661 91,923 299,917
Total Revenue 43,489,341 169,301 299,917
Expenses
a)} Employee Benefits Expense 23 41,357,601 29,035,921 31,916,789
b) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 20,191,155 14,952,880 18,035,029
¢) Finance Cost 24 25,437,621 + 17,512,920
d) Other Expenses 25 52,164,162 39,828,170 19,323,554
Total expenses 139,150,539 83.816,972 86,788,292
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (95,661,198) (83,647,670) (86,488,375)
Extraordinary (Income) / Expense =
Profit / (Loss) before tax after Extra ordinary Item (95,661,198) (83,647,670) (86,488,375)
Tax expense
i) Current Income tax -
ii) Less: Mat Credit Entitlement - - -
ili) Add: Deferred Tax (339.879) 834,005 6,554,867
(339,879) 834,005 6,554,867
Profit / (Loss) for the Period (95.321,319) (84.481,675) (93,043,242)
Other Comprehesive Income 4
A)ltems that will not be reclassed profit or loss
- Acturial Gain / (Loss) for defined benefit plan (net) 125,721 :
Total Comprehensive income for the year {A+B) (95,195,598) (84,481,675) (93,043.,242)
Basic and Diluted EPS per share of Rs.10/- each
a) Before Prior Period Adjustment 37 (63.46) (33.00) (50.35)
b) After Prior Period Adjustment 37 (63.46) (33.00) (62.03)

Note Nos 01 to 39 forms an integral part of financial statements
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INM Technologies Private Limlted

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

31.03.2018

31.03.2017

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Less: Adjustments

Interest received

Unrealized Exchange Gain

Liabilities Written back

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Add: Adjustments

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Dividend on Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
Notional Rent under IND AS

Balances written back

Depreciation & Amortisation

Operating profit before working capital changes & Other Adjustments
Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities & Short Term Provisions

Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Receivables
Inventories

Trade Receivables

Other financial assets

Other Non-current Assets

Short Term Loans & Advances & Other Current Assets

Less: [ncome Taxes (Net)
Net Cash flow from Operating activities

| B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Incl.CWIP)

(95,661,198)

236,626
1,947

(86,488,375)

219,098

65.166

(95.899,770)

(86,772,639)

910,486 1,082,496
25,437,621 17,512,920
220,398 220,398
68,285 70,638
20,191,155 18,035,029
(49,071,825) (49,851,158)
2,249 (13.969,198)
4,136,699 (595,158)
(227,428) (396,802)
(24,555,207) -
179,868 51,936
(1,186,878) 603,736
(5.056,780) (2.062.386)
(75,779.301) (66,219,030)
(4.300.000)

(80,079,301)

(66.219,030)

(15,827,955)

(11,393.680)

Sale of fixed assets 1,775,710
Capital Advances -
Interest received
Dividend Income - -
Net cash flow (used in) Investing Activities (15.827,955) {9,617.970)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in Long Term Borrowings
Share Application money pending allotment
Increase in Share Capital - -
Proceeds from Issue of Pref Share Capital 95,375,000 76.458.000
Net cash flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities 95,375,000 76,458,000
Net Increase/(decrease)in Cash and Cash Equivalents (532,256) 621,000
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 1.138.901 517.901
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the year 606,645 1,138,901
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents 2017-18 2016-17
Cash on Hand 69,456 386,720
Cash at Banks

a) In Current Account 537,196 752,181
Exchange gain on Foreign currency in hand (7 -

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 606,645 1,138,901

1. Cash Flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as per Ind AS-7 “Statement of Cash flows

" as prescribed under
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INM Technologies Private Limited

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Investments
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
1. Investment in Eqity shares - - -
(Investment in Eqity shares of INM Nument Paints Pvt
Ltd) =
Total - - -
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Advances other than capital advances
i) Security Deposit (unsecured, considered good) (Refer Note No 28.)
a) Rental deposits 3,069,217 2,832,592 2,613,494
b) Deferred Revenue Expenditure - - =
b) Miscellaneous Deposits 328,040 231,000 256,000
ii) Pre-Paid Expense 283,882 560,790 587,726
3,681,139 3,624,382 3,457,220
Other Non- Curent Assets
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Capital Advances
Unsecured, considered good (Refer Note No 28.) 1,379,123 192,244 795,980
TOTAL 1,379,123 192,244 795,980
Inventories
Asat 31.03.2018( 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
a) Stores and spares
i) Others 646,066 418,638 21,836
b) Packing materials = = £
TOTAL 646,066 418,638 21,836
Trade Receivable
Asat 31.03.2018( 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Trade Receivable (Refer Note No 28.) 24,552,160 - -
TOTAL 24,552,160 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
a) Cash on hand 69,456 386,720 13,156
b) Balance with banks in current account 537,196 752,181 504,745
TOTAL 606,652 1,138,901 517,901
& % -\ B
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15

Loan and Advances

Asat 31.03.2018( 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Capital advances for Fixed Assets (Refer Note
No.28) -
UnSecured, considered good - -
TOTAL - - -
Other Current Assets
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Pre-Paid Expense 403,686 459,605 239,764
GST - Input (Net) 2,368,772 - 36,124
IGST refund receivable 4,006,800 - -
Advance to Suppliers / others (Refer Note No 28.) 730,100 576,687 257,299
Advance to Employee for Expense - 297,514 -
Service Tax Receivable - 1,757,370 716,001
Other 349,366 - x
TDS deducted by Party 4,300,000 = =
TOTAL 12,158,724 3,091,176 1,249,188
Other long term provisions
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Provision for Gratuity 1,820,104 1,080,263
TOTAL 1,820,104 1,080,263 -
Deferred Taxes (Net)
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Deferred Tax Liability 6,449,389 6,555,317
(On account of timing differences due to depreciation)
Deferred Tax Asset (190,390) (10,273) (9,823)
(Effect of expenditure debited to statement of Profit
and Loss Account in the current year but allowable for
tax purposes in the subsequent years.)
TOTAL 6,258,999 6,545,044 (9,823)
Other Non-current liability
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Preference share capital 325,376,700 230,001,700 153,543,700
325,376,700 230,001,700 153,543,700
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Trade Payables

Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
(a) Trade Paybles (Refer Note No 28.) 2,851,137 2,818,723 9,108,138
(b) Others - : -
(i) Creditors for Capital Goods (Refer Note No 28) - 35,700 5,939,774
TOTAL 2,851,137 2,854,423 15,047,912
Other Financial Liabilities
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Accumulated dividend on Redemable Cumulative Pref
Shares. 40,351,178 19,057,338 4,397,268
40,351,178 19,057,338 4,397,268
Other Current Liabilities
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Service Tax Payable 2 10,392 5,458
Tax deduction at Source 1,883,974 682,422 732,988
VAT & Professional Tax payable 13,514 7,000 129,361
Books overdraft - - 107,555
DDT payable on Pref Shares dividend 7,852,339 3,708,558 855,708
Pref Share application money pending allotment - E: 400,000
TOTAL 9,749,827 4,408,372 2,231,070
Short Term Provisions
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
Particulars
Employee Benefit Liability 2,925,496 1,828,239 1,548,875
Provision For Expenses 2,061,823 250,125 499,980
Provident Fund/Gratuity Payable 155,148 123,752 -
TOTAL 5,142,467 2,202,116 2,048,855
Revenue from Operations
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017
Particulars
Sales of Product 154,680 .
TOTAL 154,680 -
Other operating Income
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017
Particulars
Other operating Income 43,000,000 -
TOTAIL 43,000,000 -
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Other Income

Asat 31.03.2018( 31.03.2017
Particulars
Profit on Sale of Assets - 65,166
Exchange Loss (Gain) / Loss (Net) 98,036 15,653
Others 236,626 219,098
TOTAL 334,661 299,917
Employee Benefits Expense
Asat 31.03.2018( 31.03.2017
Particulars
Salaries & Wages 33,689,127 24,496,889
Contribution To Provident Fund/Labur Welfare Fund 921,245 722,137
Staff Welfare Expenses 897,339 675,863
Directors Remuneration 4,939,404 4,939,404
Contribution To Gratuity 910,486 1,082,496
TOTAL 41,357,601 31,916,789
Finance Cost
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017
Particulars
Dividend on Cumulative Redemable Pref Shares 25,437,621 17,512,920
TOTAL 25,437,621 17,512,920
Other expense
Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017
Particulars
Power And Fuel 2,946,846 2,265,603
Repairs & Maintenance -
A)Buildings 1,032,448 705,699
B)Machinery 903,335 188,132
C) Others 36,091 80,320
Rent 4,882,898 4,511,048
Advertisement expense 507,781 -
Incorporation Expenses 24,840 -
Traveling And Conveyance 703,360 318,181
Auditor Fees 72,500 27,000
Research & Development Expenses 36,651,883 8,519,259
Transportation Charges 131,948 19,583
Insurance 84,173 86,338
Bank Charges 233,640 100,033
Bad Debts / Accounts Written-Off 68,285 70,638
Vat/ Entry Tax & Profession Tax 30,826 40,920
Professional & Consultancy 773,313 110,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,985,932 2,280,800
Patent Application fees 94,062 -
TOTAL 52,164,162 19,323,554
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Payment to Statutory Auditors *

Particulars Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017
a) Statutory Audit 47,500 20,000
b) Tax Audit 15,000 -
¢} Certification 10,000 =
b) Transfer Pricing Audit . 7,000

TOTAL 72,500 27,000

* Excluding Goods & Service Tax
Contingent Liabilities

Particulars Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017

a) Bank Guarantees. / Corporate Guarantee
b) Letter of Comfort. - -
¢) Claims aginst the Company not acknowledege as det - -
d) Estimate amount of contract remain to be executed
on account of capital commitments not provided for.
(Capital Commitments) . =

TOTAL - -

Balances of Trade Receivables / Trade payables / Advances and Security deposits are subject to Balance
Confirmation.

In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets, have a realisable value in the ordinary course of
business which is not different from the amount at which it is stated.

The Company has not received any intimation from "Suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures relating to amount unpaid as at the
year end together with interest paid / payable under this act cannot be ascertained.

As the company is operating in one segment, segment reporting is not applicable.

Previous year figures represent the standalone figures of the Holding Company since since this is the first year
of consolidation. Hence the same are not comparable.

Cash Flow stetement has been prepared under Indirect method as per IND AS-7 "Statement of Cash Flows" as
prescribed under Companies(accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

The Company has taken its R&D facility premises land under Operating lease agreement from Sri T M Rajkumar
(HUF). Total rental paid during the year under Operating leases is Rs.45,54,000/- (Previous year:Rs. 4290650 /-
) which has been disclosed as rent paid.

Monthly Rent Asat 31.03.2018| 31.03.2017

Due within one year 3,744,400 4,554,000

Due later than one year and not later than five years - 3,744,400
3,744,400 8,298,400
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37 Earning per share

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Net Profit after taxes (95,195,598) (93,043,242)
Weighted Average No of Equity shares 1,500,000 1,500,000
Face Value 10 10
Basic & Diluted EPS (63.46) (62.03)

38 All Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee

39 For other notes, refer Standalone Financials of INM Technologes Private Limited and INM Nuvent Paints Pvt

Limted
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INM Nuvent Paints Private Limited
Part - | - Balance Sheet as at 31st March-2018
(All amount are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Note As at
PARTICULARS 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-17
ASSETS
Non Current Assets
(a) Property Plant & Equipment 2
(b) Capital Work in progress
(c) Other Intangible Assets 3
(d) Financial Assets
i)Investments 4 <
ii)Others
(e) Other Non-curent Assets 5 - =
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 12 5117
Total Non-Current Assets 5,117
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 6 -
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 7 62,990 -
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 10,010 >
(iii) Loan and Advances 9 . -
(c) Other Current Assets 10 2,160
Total Current Assets 75,160 -
TOTAL ASSETS 80,277 -
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 11A 100,000
(b) Other Equity 11B (27.223) =
Total Equity 72,777 -
B) LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
(a)Provisions 11 = -
{b)Deferred Tax Liability (net) 12 - =
(c)Other Non-current Liability 13 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities - -
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Payables 14 - -
(ii) Other financial liabilities 15 - -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 16 - -
(c) Short Term Provisions 17 7.500
Total Current Liabilities 7,500 =
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 80,277 -

Note Nos 01 to 34 forms an integral part of financial statements -

As per our even report attached

for Bohara Bhandari Bung And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration No.00B1275/S:

CA.Pankaj Kumar Bohara | Firm Regn. No,
Partner 0081278 /
M.No: 215471 $-200013

Place/Camp : Raichur
Date: 18.05.2018

for and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Vishnukant C Bhutada
Director Director
DIN N0.01243391 DIN No.0322

Place/Camp : Raichur
Date: 18.05.2018

Ramakant Irfnani
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INM Nuvent Paints Private Limited

Part - II - Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March-2018

(All amount are in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the Year For the Year
. ended ended
Particulars Notel 31stMar2018 | 31stMarch 2017
Revenue
a) Revenue from operations 18 2 =
b) Other operating revenues 19 - -
Other income 20 s -
Total Revenue - -
Expenses
a) Employee Benefits Expense 21 = =
b) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 z
c¢) Finance Cost 22 - -
d) Other Expenses 23 32,340 -
Total expenses 32,340 -
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (32,340) -
Extraordinary (Income) / Expense = -
Profit / (Loss) before tax after Extra ordinary Item (32,340) -
Tax expense
i) Current Income tax . -
ii) Less: Mat Credit Entitlement r =
iii) Add: Deferred Tax (5,117) -
(5,117) -
Profit / (Loss) for the Period (27,223) -
Other Comprehesive Income - -
A)lItems that will not be reclassed profit or loss
- Acturial Gain / (Loss) for defined benefit plan (net) = .
Total Comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (27,223) -
Earning per equity share
Basic and Diluted EPS per share of Rs.10/- each 33 (2.72) -

Note Nos 01 to 34 forms an integral part of financial statements

As per our even report attached
for Bohara Bhandari Bung And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

CA Pankajkumar Bohara /[ = Firm Regn. No.
Partner 1\% g??ozoﬁé
M.No.215471 \‘\‘E

Place/Camp : Raichur
Date: 18.05.2018

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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INM Nuvent Paints Priv Limi

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

2017-18

F ‘ROM A T
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Less: Adjustments
Interest received
Unrealized Exchange Gain
Liabilities Written back
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets

Add: Adjustments
Provision for Gratuity
Depreciation & Amortisation
Operating profit before working capital changes & Other Adjustments
Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables
Other Current Liabilities & Short Term Provisions
Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in Operating Receivables
Inventories
Trade Receivables
Other Non-current Assets
Short Term Loans & Advances & Other Current Assets

Less: Income Taxes (Net)
Net Cash flow from Operating activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (Incl.CWIP)

Capital Advances
Interest received
Dividend Income
Net cash flow (used in) Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital
Share Application money pending allotment
Proceeds from Issue of Pref Share Capital

Net cash flow from/(Used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase/(decrease)in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year

(32,340)

(32,340)

(32,340)

7,500

(62,990)

(2.160)
(89,990)

(89.990)

100,000

100,000

10,010

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the year

10,010

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

2017-18

Cash on Hand
Cash at Banks
a) In Current Account

10

10,000

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

10,010

1. Cash Flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as per Ind AS-7 "Statement of Cash flows " as prescribed under

Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.

2. This being the first year of incorporation disclosure of corresponding year figures not applicable.
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INM Nuvent Paints Private Limited

Corporate Information

INM Nuvent Paints Private Ltd is a unique paint manufacturing facility established on 07" March 2018, as
a subsidiary of INM Technologies Private Limited Bangalore. The facility is setup in Bangalore,
Karnataka State, India. The main objects of the Company is to:

e To carry on the business of manufacturers, Traders, Exporters & Importers, Research and

development of and dealers in various types of Paints, chemicals, chemicals compounds(organic
and inorganic) in all forms, and chemical products of any nature and kind whatsoever, and all
byproducts and joint products thereof.

To carry on business as chemical engineers, analytical chemists, Research and development,
importers, exporters, manufacturers of and dealers in heavy chemicals, acid alkalies, petro
chemicals, chemical compounds and chemicals of all kinds (solid, liquid and gaseous ), drugs,
medicines, pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, Products manufactured out of Nano technology, tannins,
tannin extracts, essences, solvents, plastics of all types, dye stuff, intermediates, textile auxiliaries,
cellophanes, colour dyes, paints, varnishes, vat and other organic dyestuff, chemical auxiliaries,
disinfectants, insecticides, fungicides, deodarants, bio-chemicals and pharmaceuticals, medicinal,
sizing, bleaching, photographical and other preparation and articles.

To manufacture, deal in or process, or engage in Research and development of styrene, butadiene,
ethylene, alcohol, petroleum fractions and other chemical substances of all kinds, to manufacture
compounds, synthetics and other substances, basic intermediate or otherwise from chemical
substances of all kinds.

To manufacture, buy, sell, import, export, deal or engage or in Research and development,in
chemical, chemical compounds, chemical products, acids, alkalies, petrochemicals, chemical
medicines, drugs, pharmaceuticals, antibiotics, tannin, tannin extracts, essences, solvents, plastic
of all types, dyes, dye stuff, intermediate, paints, varnishes, disinfectants, insecticides, fungicides,
deodorants, bio-chemicals and sizing, bleaching and photographic materials.

Basis of preparation of financial statements:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read together with
the Rule 4 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016 to the extent applicable and the other
relevant provisions of the Act, pronouncements of the regulatory bodies applicable to the
company.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern and accrual basis. The accounting

policies shall be applied consistently to all the periods prospectively in the financial statements.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 18/5/2018.

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with applicable
accounting principles and Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) in India and as notified under
the Companies Act 2013 and the other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and accrual basis
of accountidg, except for certain financial assets and liabilities as specified and defined benefit




Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non-Current

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current. Based on the nature of product
and activities of the Company and their realization in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

1. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Functional and Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (“INR™) which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been reported in Indian Rupees, except for share and per share
data, unless otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may
not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precisely reflect the absolute figures.

b) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accounting principles requires the
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the results of operations during the said reporting period. Although these estimates are
based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ
from these estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period
in which the results are known / materialized. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively.

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any
cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, net charges
on adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

All costs, including financing costs till commencement of commercial activities attributable to the
Fixed assets shall be capitalized.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets shall be based estimated useful life of assets under Straight Line Method
(SLM) as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act-2013, with exception of those assets whose
useful life is ascertained by the management and is different than those prescribed under Schedule I1.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

d) Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates
less accumulated amortisation / depletion and impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase
price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use, net charges on foreign exchange adjustments arising from exchange rate variations
attributable to the Inﬁngible Assets.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. Other Indirect Expenses incurred relating to project,
net of income earned during the project development stage prior to its intended use, are considered as
pre - operative expenses and disclosed under Intangible Assets Under Development.

Research and Development Expenditure

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Development costs of products are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a product’s
technological and commercial feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is
capitalised.

Investments
Long term Investments shall be stated at cost less provision for diminution in the value other than
temporary in nature, if any.

Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for
obsolescence, if any, except in case of by-products which are valued at net realisable value. Cost of
inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing
overheads net of recoverable taxes incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and
condition.

Cost of raw materials, chemicals, stores and spares, packing materials, trading and other products are
determined on FIFO basis.

Provisions

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and is probable that an outflow of resources. Contingent
Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated cost can be
estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial involvement with the goods,
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest Income
Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method.

Dividend Income
Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been established.

Employee Benefits (AS-15)
The Company has been incorporated w.e.f 07-03-2018. The Company contemplates to implement short
term and long term benefits to its employees in due course of time.

In respect of long term benefits such as gratuity this would be applicable only subject to completion of

minimum of 5 years of continuous service by the employees. As and how this would be applicable the
Company would provide for the same.

\
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k) Borrowing cost
Borrowing cost relating to (i) funds borrowed for acquisition / construction of qualifying assets shall be
capitalized upto the date the assets are put to use, and (ii) funds borrowed for other purposes will be
charged to Profit & Loss account.

) Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(I) Financial Asset:

WMETS /
5-200013

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through P&L, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset, purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified as measured at:

e Amortised cost
e  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
s  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

(a) Financial Asset measured at amortized cost

Financial Assets held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding are measured at amortized cost using effective
interest rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortization is recognised as finance income in the
statement of Profit & Loss. The company while applying above criteria has classified the
following at amortized cost:

(a) Trade receivables
(b) Loans
(c) Other financial assets

(b) Financial Assets Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment losses, if
any are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to ‘other income’ in
théiStatement of Profit and Loss.

"';-{i'u;-““'i ’I’i;;i\('c) Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
)
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Financial Asset are measured at Fair value through Profit & Loss if it does not meet the
criteria for classification as measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI. All fair value
changes are recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss.

Equity Instruments

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially
measured at fair value through Profit & Loss Account, the group may, on initial
recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVTPL.

De-recognition of Financial Assets:

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred and the transfer qualifies for
Derecognition. On Derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the carrying amount (measured on the date of recognition) and the consideration received
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) shall be recognised in
the statement of Profit & Loss.

[mpairment of Financial Assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model by
adopting the simplified approach using a provision matrix reflecting current condition and
forecasts of future economic conditions for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial Assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g.
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

(b) Financial Assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI.
(c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17.
(d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
(e) Loan commitments which are not measured at FVTPL
(f) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured at FVTPL
Finanecial Liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any transaction cost that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial liability except financial liabilities at FVTPL
that are measured at fair value.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with
all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost:

Amortized cost for financial liabilities represents amount at which financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount
and the maturity amount.

The company is classifying the following under amortized cost
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- Borrowings from banks

- Borrowings from others

- Trade payables

- Other Financial Liabilities

Derecognition:

A financial liability shall be derecognised when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

) Foreign Currency Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss

n) Current Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised
in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the Other
Comprehensive Income or in equity. In which case, the tax is also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or Equity.

i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the Income Tax authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the Balance sheet
date.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period. Deferred Tax Asset are recognized subject to the management's judgment that the
realization is virtually / reasonable certain.

Lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as Operating Lease. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as
expenses on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

p) Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share (“EPS™) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

q) Cash flow Statement

Cash flows are repérted using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
H?‘ﬁf};ﬁﬁﬁmqsactiéns of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
N—ZN




cash receipts or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated

r) Recent accounting developments
Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 115 - “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the following new and amendments to Ind Ass which
the Group has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April
1,2018.

Ind AS 115 establishes a single model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current revenue recognition
standard, Ind AS 18 “Revenue” when it becomes effective.

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that, an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods and services to customers in an account that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for these goods or
services. The new standard also requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of adoption of Ind AS 115 on its
financial statements

Ind AS 21 - The effect of changes in Foreign Exchanges rates

The amendment has been incorporated in Ind AS 21 as Appendix B, which clarifies on the
accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a
foreign currency. The appendix is applicable for accounting periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2018. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary
prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt.

The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements.

Amendment to Existing issued Ind AS
The MCA has also carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:

i. Ind AS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
ii. Ind AS 40 - Investment Property
iii. Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s
Financial Statements.
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INM Nuvent Paints Private Limited

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Investments

Particulars

31/03/2018

1. Investment in Eqity shares
([Investment in Eqity shares of INM Nument Paints P Ltd)

31/03/2017

Total

Other financial Assets

Particulars

[

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

i) Security Deposit (unsecured, considered good) (Refer Note No 26.)

a) Rental deposits
b) Miscellaneous Deposits
ii) Pre-Paid Expense

TOTAL

Inventories

Particulars

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

a) Stores and spares
i) Others
b) Packing materials

TOTAL

Trade Receivable

Particulars

31/03/2018

Trade Receivable (Refer Note No 26.)

62,990

31/03/2017

TOTAL

62,990

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

a) Cash on hand
b) Balance with banks in current account

10
10,000

TOTAL

10,010

Loan and Advances

Particulars

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

Capital advances for Fixed Assets (Refer Note No 26.)
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

TOTAL

Other Current Assets

Particulars

31/03/2018

Pre-Paid Expense

GST - [nput (Net)

IGST refund receivable

Advance to Suppliers / others
Advance to Employee for Expense
Service Tax Receivable

Other

TDS deducted by Party

2,160

31/03/2017

TOTAL

2,160

Other long term provisions

Particulars

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

Provision for Gratuity

TOTAL

Deferred Taxes [Net)

Particulars

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred Tax Asset

5,117

TOTAL

5,117




INM Nuvent Paints Private Limited
(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)
11A Share Capital

As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Particulars

Authorised share Capital
Equity shares
100000 Rs. 10/- each par value 1,000,000

1,000,000

1 idu
Equity shares
10,000 (0) Rs. 10/- each par value 100,000
TOTAL 100,000 =
(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares.
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Nos Amount Nos Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the
Equity Shares
Shares issued during the year
Equity Shares 10,000 100.000.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 10,000 100,000 -
(b) Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Particulars As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017
Nos % of Holding Nos % of Holding

1) INM Technologies Pvt Ltd 10,000 100
2) Dr.A.R. Phani
Rights and Restricti ed to Equity § S

The Company has issued Equity shares having face value of Rs.10/- per share. Each Share Holder is eligible for one vote per share. In case
dividend is proposed by the Company it will be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation, the equity
share holders are eligible to receive balance assets remaining after repayment to all the preferential share capital holders, in the in
proportion to their equity holding.
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14
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20

21

Other Non-current liability

Particulars

31/03/2018

Preference share capital

31/03/2017

Trade Payables

Particulars

31/03/2018

(a) Trade Paybles (Refer Note No 26.)
(b) Others
(i) Creditors for Capital Goods (Refer Note No 26)

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

31/03/2018

31/03/2017

Accumulated dividend on Redemable Cumulative Pref Shares.

Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

31/03/2018

Service Tax Payable

Tax deduction at Source

VAT & Professional Tax payable

Books overdraft

Pref Share application money pending allotment

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Short Term Provisions

Particulars

31/03/2018

Employee Benefit Liability
Provision For Expenses
Provident Fund/Gratuity Payable

7,500

31/03/2017

TOTAL

7.500

Revenue from Operations

Particulars

31/03/2018

Sales of Product

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Other operating Income

Particulars

31/03/2018

Other operating Income

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Other Income

Particulars

31/03/2018

Profit on Sale of Assets
Exchange Loss (Gain) / Loss (Net)
Others

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars

31/03/2018

Salaries & Wages

Contribution To Provident Fund/Labur Welfare Fund
Staff Welfare Expenses

Contribution To Gratuity

31/03/2017

TOTAL
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24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Finance Cost

Particulars 31/03/2018

Dividend on Cumulative Redemable Pref Shares

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Other expense

Particulars 31/03/2018

31/03/2017

Power And Fuel
Repairs & Maintenance
A)Buildings
B)Machinery
C) Others
Rent
Advertisement expense
Incorporation Expenses
Traveling And Conveyance
Auditor Fees
Research & Development Expenses
Transportation Charges
Insurance
Bank Charges
Bad Debts / Accounts Written-Off
Vat/ Entry Tax & Profession Tax
Professional & Consultancy
Miscellaneous Expenses
Patent Application fees

24,840

7,500

TOTAL 32,340

Payment to Statutory Auditors *

Particulars 31/03/2018

a) Statutory Audit 7,500
b) Tax Audit
c) Certification

b) Transfer Pricing Audit

31/03/2017

TOTAL 7.500

* Excluding GST / Service Tax

Contingent Liabilities

Particulars 31/03/2018

a) Bank Guarantees. / Corporate Guarantee

b) Letter of Comfort.

c) Claims aginst the Company not acknowledege as debts.

d) Estimate amount of contract remain to be executed on
account of capital commitments not provided for. (Capital
Commitments)

31/03/2017

TOTAL

Balances of Trade Receivables / Trade payables / Advances and Security deposits are
subject to Balance Confirmation.

In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than fixed assets, have a realisable value in
the ordinary course of business which is not different from the amount at which it is
stated.

The Company has not received any intimation from “Suppliers” regarding their status
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence
disclosures relating to amount unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid /
payable under this act cannot be ascertained.

As the company is operating in one segment, segment reporting is not applicable.

Since this is the first year of incorporation disclosure of previous year financial
statements not applicable




£10002-S

[ SIZ1E00

wiG el

000001 panssi saleys A1inbg
- s 000°€9 9[qEAI3I3I SpEJL
- - d[qeded apeli],
- - - (000°2€) (h3ou)pasanour asuadxy
- - - - 3214135 /sales
- - - - aseyaang Auedwo) Suopjoy payiuur alealld sarSojouyda], NI |!
$10)23J1( uowrwod Suiaey sasridiajug (e
. uonJdesuen . uonoesuen
L107°E0'1E Japo ( 810Z'€0°1€ Ja1no (jesues] yo suondiisiq diysuonejay fy1ed parejal jo auren |oN 1S
Je dduUERg je Jdueeq
asuadxa)/awodou] asuadxa)/awoduj
L1-9T02 81-L102 PaIWIr 93eALId SAIB0[OULPA], WNI (

payiwr] asedipajy ednys (e

$991SN.0) JO pIeod/s10)03.11([ uowwoed Suisey sasuidiajug z

fueuuy Juexewey (q
epenyg J jueqnuysiA (e
[PuuosIag yuaurafeuep £3) 1

Mo[aq pajsl| ale 1eaf ay3 Bupnp aoe[d Uaxel 2ABY SUOHILSUERL) WIOYM (IIm sannted paje[al pue SISIxa [013U0D asaym sapaed paie[ay

suonoesuel] Alied pajedy 1€




32 Cash Flow stetement has been prepared under Indirect method as per IND AS-7
"Statement of Cash Flows" as prescribed under Companies(accounting Standard) Rules,

2006.

33 Earning per share

Particulars 31/03/2018 31/03/2017
Net Profit after taxes (27,223) .
Weighted Average No of Equity shares 10,000

Face Value 10.00

Basic & Diluted EPS (2.72)

34 All Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

As per our even report attached
for Bohara Bhandari Bung And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration No.0081275 /5200

XA

-~ CA.Pankaj Kumar Bohara
Partner
M.No: 215471

Firm Regn. No.
008127S /
§-200013

Place/Camp : Raichur
Date: 18.05.2018

Vishnukant C Bhutada™ RamaMant Innanl

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director
DIN No.01243391

Director
DIN No.03222748

Place/Camp : Raichur
Date: 18.05.2018



SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Part-I- Balance Sheet
(All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

As at
PARTICULARS Note | 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 01.04.2016
No. Audited Audited Audited
INR INR INR
ASSETS
1 | Non-current assets
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 85,386,098 86,140,181 89,247,171
b) Capital work-in-progress 1 35,624,073 18,390,814 18,390,814
c) Other Intangible assets 1 648,515 747.992 685,054
d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 2 11,609 10,875 10,145
(ii) Others 3 617,168 392,659 301,053
e) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 15,597,823 12,375,834 10,854,684
f) Other non-current assets 5 727.853 727,853 727.853
138,613,139 118,786,208 120,216,773
2 | Current assets
a) Inventories 6 5,610,813 5,422,610 4,935,097
b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 13,896,600 11,895,718 10,376,514
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,590,534 2,505,295 193,050
c¢) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 3,970,401 210,195 10,055
d} Other current assets 10 6,182,756 1,592,312 284,775
31,251,104 21,626,130 15,799,492
Total Assets 169,864,242 140,412,338 136,016,265
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share capital 11 18,376,340 18,376,340 18,376,340
b) Other Equity 12 (4,276,455) 12,626,990 27,954,821
14,099,885 31,003,330 46,331,161
LIABILITIES
1 | Non-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 118,837,674 71,796,652 61,895,494
b) Provisions 14 3,247,066 3,100,293 757,365
c}) Other non-current liabilities 15 1,274,888 1,408,220 1,541,553
123,359,628 76,305,165 64,194,412
2 | Current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 3,569,251 2,122,120 -
(ii) Trade payables 17 17,189,338 5,703,721 7,005,653
(iii) Other financial liabilities 18 7,989,005 22,328,046 16,055,917
b) Other current liabilities 19 3,256,740 2,579,282 2,163,656
¢) Provisions 20 400,396 370,673 265,466
32,404,730 33,103,842 25,490,692
Total Equity and Liabilities 169,864,242 140,412,338 136,016,265

Note No. 1 to 37 form an Integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

for S.N.M.Nandury & Co
Chartered Accountants
(firm Regn. N0.0061995)

Surya Narayana Murthy N.
Proprietor
M.No0.201040

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Shilpa Therapeutics Private Limited

P

Vishnukant. C. Bhutada
Director
DIN: 01243391

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018

Ramakant Ifani |

Director

i
DIN: 03222748 |,
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SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Part - Il - Statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
Note ended ended
PARTICULARS 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
No. Audited Audited
INR INR
I | Revenue from operations 21 31,103,392 36,604,942
It | Otherincome 22 361,659 304,598
1] Total Income (I+11) 31,465,051 36,909,540
IV | Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 23 7,848,779 7,373,237
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in- 24 608,880 369,435
trade
Excise Duty Collected 25 534,377 4,257,612
Employee benefits expense 26 18,435,557 16,476,232
Finance Costs 27 9,743,714 7,398,831
Depreciation and amortization expense 1 5,284,901 4,999,486
Other expenses 28 10,720,438 12,883,687
Total Expense (IV) 53,176,646 53,758,520
V | Profit before exceptional items and tax (l1I-1V) (21,711,595) (16,848,980)
VI | Exceptional Items - -
VIl | Profit/(Loss) before tax (V-VI) (21,711,595) (16,848,980)
VIl | Tax expense:
(1) Current tax - .
(2) Deferred tax(Net) (3,221,989) (1,521,149)
Total Tax Expenses (VHI) (3,221,989) (1,521,149)
IX | Profit/{Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-ViII) (18,489,606) (15,327,831)
X | Profit/(Loss) for the period (18,489,606) (15,327,831)
X1 | Other Comprehensive Income = s
Xl | Total Comprehensive Income for the period (X+XI) (18,489,606) (15,327,831)
XIll | Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic (10.06) (8.34)
(2) Diluted (10.06) (8.34)

Note No. 1 to 37 form an Integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

for S.N.M.Nandury & Co
Chartered Accountants
(firm Regn. N0.006199S)

Surya Narayana Murthy N.
Proprietor
M.No.201040

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Shilpa Therapeutics Private Limited

Ramakant [hani
Director

Vishnukant. C. Bhutada
Director
DIN: 01243391

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Cash Flow Statement
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31.03.2018 | ended 31.03.2017
INR INR
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Tax (21,711,595) (16,848,980)
Adjustments for:
Income from investing activities (22,951) (23,256}
Depreciation 5,284,901 4,999,486
Govt Grant Amortized (133,333) (133,333)
Interest Paid 9,743,714 7,398,831
Operating profit before working capital changes & Other
adjustments (6,839,264) (4,607,252)
Adjustments for
Change in trade receivables (2,000,882) (1,519,204}
Change in other short term loans and advances (9,942,962) (1,568,027)
Change in inventories (188,203) (487,513)
Change in trade payables 11,485,617 (1,301,932)
Change in other current liabilities (9,713,436) 8,394,249
Change in short Term Provision 840,514 654,166
Cash generated from operations (16,358,616) (435,513)
Net cash flow from operating activities (16,358,616) (435,513)
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of fixed assets - 175,671
Purchase of Fixed Assets (21,664,600) (2,131,105)
Change in long term advances (225,243) (92,336)
Change in non current assets - 60,350
Income from Interest on electricity deposit 22,951 22,526
Income from Interest on bank deposit 2 730
Change in other non current Liabilities (133,332) (133,333)
Change in long term provisions 146,773 2,342,928
Net cash flow from investing activities (21,853,450) 245,431
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in long term borrowings 47,041,022 9,901,158
Interest paid (9,743,714) (7,398,831)
Net cash from financing activities 37,297,308 2,502,327
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SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Cash Flow Statement
(All amounts in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended 31.03.2018 | ended 31.03.2017
INR INR
Net (decrease)/Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (914,757) 2,312,245
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,505,295 193,050
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,590,534 2,505,295

Note:
1 Previous year figures have been reclassed where ever necessary
2 Cash Flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as per Ind-AS 7 " Statement of cash flow"

As per our report of even date

for S.N.M.Nandury & Co _ For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants 230 of Shilpa Therapeutics Private Limited
(firm Regn. N0.006199S)

PRGN S|

Surya Narayana Murthy N. Vi s;lﬁﬁi kant. C. Bhutada Ramakant Inani
Proprietor = Director Director
M.No.201040 DIN: 01243391

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018 Date: 22.05.2018




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

12. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OTHER EQUITY

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

" Other Reserve
Securities K Remeasuremen .
. . (Revaluation . Retained
Particulars Premium t of defined . Total
Reserve under . Eernings
Reserve . benefit plan
Previous GAAP)
Balance at 01.04.2016 43,092,810 9,631,180 - (24,769,169) 27,954,821
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - - - (15,327,831) (15,327,831)
Balance at 31.03.2017 43,092,810 9,631,180 - (40,097,000) 12,626,990
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 1,586,159 - 1,586,159
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - - (18,489,606) {18,489,606)
Balance at 31.03.2018 43,092,810 9,631,180 1,586,159 {58,586,605) (4,276,455)

Note No. 1 to 37 form an Integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

for S.N.M.Nandury & Co
Chartered Accountants
(firm Regn. N0.006199S)

Surya Narayana Murthy N.
Proprietor
M.No0.201040

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Shilpa Therapeutics Private Limited

Vlshnukant C. Bhutada
Director
DIN: 01243391

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 22.05.2018

“Ramakant Inari
Director
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SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018
(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 2 :
Investments
Particul As at As at
leulars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
SBI Magnum Insta Cash Fund 11,609 10,875
Total 11,609 10,875
Note 3:
Others Financial Assets
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Electricity Deposit 415,668 355,159
b) IDPL Security Deposit 6,000 6,000
c) Deposit with Mana Effluent Treatment Plant Ltd 31,500 31,500
d) Deposit with Ramky Enviro 50,000
e) Rent Security Deposit 114,000 -
Total 617,168 392,659
Note 4:
Deferred Tax Asset / Liability (Net)
Particul As at As at
riicutars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Deferred Tax Asset 25,415,209 23,672,270
{on account of disallowable items under Income Tax Act)
Deferred Tax Liability 9,817,386 11,296,436
(On account of timing difference of WDV of assets)
Total 15,597,823 12,375,834
Note 5:
Other Non Current Asset:
Long Term Loans and Advances
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Other Loans and Advances - Unsecured
a) MAT Credit Entitlement 258,362 258,362
b) VAT Input Credit 469,491 469,491
Total 727,853 727,853




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED}

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018

all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated

Note 6:
Disclosure pursuant to Note no.O (i), (ii) and {(ii) of Part | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
Inventories
Particul As at As at
articutars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
a) Raw Materials and components
Raw Materials 1,958,692 1,387,234
Packing Materials 3,617,328 3,345,559
5,576,020 4,732,793
b} Work-in-progress - 303,000
c) Finished goods
Internally Manufactured - 305,880
d) Stores and spares
Consumables 34,793 80,937
Total 5,610,813 5,422,610
Note 7:
Disclosure pursuant to Note no.P (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) of Part | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
Trade Receivables
Particul As at As at
articutars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 3,262,554 3,262,554
3,262,554 3,262,554
Trade receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they
are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good 10,634,046 8,633,164
10,634,046 8,633,164
Total 13,896,600 11,895,718

Note 8:

Disclosure pursuant to Note no.Q (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) of Part I of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Cash on Hand 2,510 10,491
b) Balances with banks
-in current accounts 1,588,024 269,804
-in Fixed Deposits / Investments
-less than 3 months maturity - 2,225,000
Total 1,590,534 2,505,295




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018
all amounts in Indian rupees : i y

Note 9:

Disclosure pursuant to Note no.M (i),(ii) and (iii) of Part | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Income Tax Refund Receivable for FY 2012-13 2,727 2,727
b) Income Tax Refund Receivable for FY 2013-14 1,595 1,595
c) Income Tax Refund Receivable for FY 2014-15 3,620 3,620
d) Income Tax Refund Receivable for FY 2016-17 - 202,253
e) TDS Receivable for FY 2017-18 177,427 <
f) GST Input 3,785,032 -
Total 3,970,401 210,195
Note 10:
Disclosure pursuant to Note no.M (i),(ii) and (iii) of Part | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
Other Current Assets
] As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Short-term loans and advances
Others (specify nature)
Unsecured, considered good
a) Advances with creditors 5,684,853 1,586,539
b) Cenvat Excise Balance 5,773
¢ ) Pre-paid Expenses 350,722 =
d )JAdvance to Staff (CEO) 147,181
Total 6,182,756 1,592,312
Note 13:
Non-Current Liabilities
Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6(C) of Part | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
Long Term Borrowings
Particulars As at As at
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Secured
Term loans
Vehicle Loan 112,634 205,312
{The loan is taken from Bank of Baroda, secured By Hyp.of Car and is guaranteed by
Directors and is repayable by EMIs.
Rate of Interest @ 11.5% p.a. )
Unsecured
Loans from Related Parties
Loan from Shilpa Medicare Ltd.{(Holding Co.) 114,725,040 67,591,340
Rate of Interest @ 9% p.a.
8% Cumulative Redemable Preference shares 4,000,000 4,000,000
4,00,000 (P.Y.4,00,000), Rs.10/- each par value
Total 118,837,674 71,796,652
/ \;-:‘:\\
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SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018

[all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 14 :
Non Current Provisions
Particul As at As at
cuars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
a) Provision for Gratuity 1,631,702 1,964,763
b) Provision for Dividend on Preferance Share Capital incl Dividend Distribution Tax 1,513,695 1,135,530
¢) Provision For CST Payable 101,669 -
Total 3,247,066 3,100,293
Note 15:
Other Non Current Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
articula 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Capital Subsidy Received (Govt. Grant) 1,408,220 1,866,667
Less: Amortised in the Proporation of Depreciation (133,332) (458,447)
1,274,888 1,408,220
Total 1,274,888 1,408,220
Note 16:
Borrowings
Particul As at As at
articutars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Axis Bank CC Account 3,569,251 2,122,120
Total 3,569,251 2,122,120
Note 17:
Trade Payable
Particulars As at As at
articuta 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Trade Payables 3,845,302 996,392
- due to Micro and Small Enterprises (Refer Note No.4.02) - -
- Project
Domestic 4,595,520 67,980
Foreign 1,582,444 1,582,444
- Others 7,166,072 3,056,905
Total 17,189,338 5,703,721

Note
17.01.Balances as at the year end are subject to confirmation.

17.02.The Company has not received any intimation from "Suppliers" regarding their status under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures relating to amount unpaid as at the year end

together with interest paid / payable under this act have not been given.

Hyderabad _f‘f




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 18:

Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6(G) of Part | of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013

Other Financial Liabilities *

Particulars As at As at
Y 31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Current maturities of long-term debt 102,495 101,086
b) Interest accrued and due on unsecured Loan from Shilpa Medicare Limited 7,886,510 22,226,960
Total 7,989,005 22,328,046
Note 19:
Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 6(G) of Part | of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013
Other Current Liabilities *
Particular As at As at
articutars 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
a) Current maturities of Government Grant 133,333 133,333
b) Salaries & Reimbursements 1,116,448 900,484
¢ ) Gratuity Payable 394,216
d) Provident Fund Payable 91,428 25,995
e) ESI Payable 25,566 10,570
f) Performance Bonus Payable 517,447 -
g) Audit Fee Payable 27,000 -
h) TDS payable 1,312,056 1,040,851
i} CST payable 21,912 62,233
j) Professional Tax Payable 11,550 11,600
Total 3,256,740 2,579,282
Note 20 :
Current Provisions
Particulars As at As at
. 31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Provision for Expenses 400,396 370,673
Total 400,396 370,673

Note 21:

Disclosures pursuant to Point no. 2(A) of Part Il of Schedule 1ll to the Companies Act, 2013

Revenue from operations

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Sales 31,412,531 34,604,942
b) Other Operating Revenue (Product Development) - 2,000,000
c) Sales Return (309,139) -
Gross Revenue from Operation 31,103,392 36,604,942




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018
(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 22:

Disclosures pursuant to Point no. 4 of Part Il of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013

Other Incomes

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

a) Interest on Fixed Deposits - 730
b) Interest on Income Tax Refund 11,120 19,187
¢ ) Interest on Electricity Deposit 22,951 22,526
d) Documentation Charges 91,680 -
e) Other Incomes 50,958 128,822
f) Interest on LC Deposit 38,082 -
g} Duty Draw Back from Customs Dept 13,535 =
h) Government grant 133,333 133,333

Total 361,659 304,598

Note 23:

Disclosures pursuant to point no. 5 of Part Il of Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013

Cost of Raw Material & Packing Material Consumed

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Raw Material 1,387,234 1,298,837
Packing materials 3,345,559 2,584,693
Total 4,732,793 3,883,530

Add:

Raw Material Purchases 3,899,127 3,063,012
Packing materials purchases 4,792,879 5,159,488
Total 8,692,006 8,222,500
Total 13,424,799 12,106,030

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Raw Material 1,958,692 1,387,234
Packing materials 3,617,328 3,345,559
Total 5,576,020 4,732,793
Cost of Raw Material and Packing Materials Consumed 7,848,779 7,373,237

Note 24:
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 305,880 769,555
Work in progress 303,000 208,760
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods - 305,880
Work in progress - 303,000
Change in the inventory of finished goods, WIP and stock in trade 608,880 369,435




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018

(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 25:
Excise Duty Collected

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
Excise Duty 534,377 4,257,612
Total 534,377 4,257,612
Note 26:
Employee Benefits Expense
For the year | Forthe year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Salaries and Incentives 15,694,458 13,251,032
b) Director's Remuneration - 330,000
c) Contribution to EPF & ESI 671,670 308,921
d) Perfomance Bonus 920,633 227,300
e) Gratuity 858,882 2,358,979
f) Staff welfare exp 289,914 -
Total 18,435,557 16,476,232

Note 27:

Disclosure pursuant to Note no. 3 of Part |l of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013

Finance Costs

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017

a) Interest expense on:
-Term Loan 30,531 40,872
-Unsecured Loans 8,762,790 6,949,314
-On CC Account 572,228 8,894
-Others (TDS & Service Tax payments) - 21,586
b) Dividend on Preference Shares (incuding Dividend Distribution Tax) 378,165 378,165
Total 9,743,714 7,398,831




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
(formerly known as NU THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Notes forming part of financial statement for the yead ended 31.03.2018
(all amounts in Indian rupees, except share data and where otherwise stated)

Note 28:
Other expenses

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2017
a) Consumption of Stores and Spares\Consumables 568,397 1,100,941
b) Power and Fuel 2,882,937 2,724,811
¢} Repairs and Maintenance:
(i) Plant and Machinery 414,022 1,063,516
(ii) Others 316,144 172,762
d) Rates and Taxes 249,891 867,100
e) Insurance 35,948 141,959
f) Travelling and Conveyance 433,577 274,315
g) Contract Labour charges-NMR Maintenance 156,919 1,037,283
h) Auditor's Remuneration 30,000 17,250
i) R&D Expenses (materials) 1,586,751 1,797,861
j) Bank charges 94,436 154,658
k) Advertisement and Sales promotion expenses 19,070 19,920
I) Transportation Charges 68,028 28,655
m} Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges 1,879,375 986,987
n) Miscellaneous Expenses 979,452 2,324,242
o) Licence fee and Taxes - 60,350
p) Foreign Exchange Fluctuation {(Grain)/Loss 13,136 111,077
q) Cylinder Printing Charges 323,987 T
r ) Effulent Treatment Expenses 182,250 *
s) Books & Periodicals 41,249 -
t} Godown Rent 342,000 -
u) Late Fee-GST 1,200 -
v) CST Expenses 101,669 -
Total 10,720,438 12,883,687




SHILPA THERAPEUTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Formerly known as Nu Therapeutics Private Limited)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shilpa Therapeutics Private Limited (formerly known as NU Therapeutics Pvt. Ltd.) (The “Company”)
situated at Cherlapally, IDA Phase-Ill, Hyderabad, India, a progressive novel drug delivery company
with an international outlook is dedicated to the development and commercialization of innovative
and patient compliant novel drug delivery systems such as fast disintegrating oral strips.

The Company is the first company to commercialize prescription products as oral thin strips/films in

India.

29.

11

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND-AS) as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read together
with the Rule 4 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2016 to the extent applicable
and the other relevant provisions of the Act, pronouncements of the regulatory bodies
applicable to the company.

ii. The financial statements for the years ended 31st March,2017 and the opening Balance

Sheet as at 1st April, 2016 have been restated in accordance with IND-AS for comparative
information.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements, including the preparation of the opening IND-AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April,
2016 being the ‘date of transition to Ind AS’.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 were approved
by the Board of Directors on 22.05.2018

The financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with
applicable accounting principal in India and as notified under the Companies Act 2013 and
the other relevant provisions of the Act.

The IND-AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain
financial assets and liabilities as specified and defined benefit plans which have been
measured at actuarial valuation as required by relevant IND-AS.

Significant Accounting Policies

Critical accounting Estimates and Judgements:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events
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and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgments are:
- Measurement of defined benefit obligation (Note 1.1(h})
- Estimation of Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (Note 1.1(
c)
- Recognition of deferred taxes (Note 1.1{0))
- Estimation of impairment (Note 1.1(e))
- Estimation of provision and contingent liabilities (Note 1.1(p})

b) Recent accounting developments:

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 has notified the following new and amendments to Ind Ass which
the Group has not applied as they are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April
1, 2018.

. Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 establishes a single comprehensive model! for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Ind AS 115 will supersede the current
revenue recognition standard Ind AS 18 Revenue, Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts when
it becomes effective.

The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

¢ Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognize revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

The Group is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements and

will apply the standard using the cumulative effective method, with the effect of initially
applying IND AS 115 being recognized as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings of the annual reporting period.

ii. Ind AS 21 -The effect of changes in Foreign Exchanges rates

The amendment has been incorporated in Ind AS 21 as Appendix B, which clarifies on the
accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration
in a foreign currency. The appendix is applicable for accounting periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2018. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-
monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt.
The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment on its financial statements.




c)

d)

f)

Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation:

i. Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses if any. Cost comprises of purchase price and
any attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use.

ii. Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their
intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct costs, related incidental
expenses and attributable interest.

iii. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iv. Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on ascertain useful life of assets under
Straight Line Method (SLM) prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act-
2013, with exception of those assets whose useful life is ascertain by the
management.

v. The Company follows the policy of charging depreciation on pro-rate basis on
the assets acquired or disposed off during the year.

vi. During the year, there is change of accounting policy related to equipments of
the company. The company has been capitalizing the cylinder printing charges
considering it as a fixed asset for the company and the depreciation has been
charged over the years. But from 2™ quarter i.e., July-sept, 2017, these cylinder
printing charges are being charged to statement of profit and loss account as
expense. The carrying amount of cylinder printing charges in the fixed assets
shall be written off over the period of 12 months starting from Aprit 1, 2018.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible Assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Cost includes any
expenditure directly attributable on making the asset ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets are amortized over their useful life.

Impairment of Assets:

The carrying values of assets/cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed
for impairment if any indication of impairment exists.

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value.
Recoverable value being higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal. Value in
use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful life of
the assets. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Profit and Loss Account in
the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.

Inventory:




g)

h)

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is determined
on FIFO basis. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of purchases,
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Employee Benefits:

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Contribution plans

Contribution towards Provident Fund for certain employees is made to the regulatory
authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart
from the Contributions made on a monthly basis.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided on the basis of an actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of each year.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income (OCl).

Leases:

Operating Lease
Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of

ownership of the leased item are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
are recognized as an expense in the statement Profit & Loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.

i. Sale of products:
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract,
there is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. The Company retains no effective control of the goods
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of
goods. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as sales tax, value added tax,
etc.




)

k)

m)

Other Income

i Interest Income is recognized using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method.
ii. Dividend income is recognized when right to receive is established.

Foreign Currency Transactions/Translations:

Initial Recognition

Foreign Currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount, the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign
currency at the date of the Transaction.

Translations

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange Differences

The exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting
Company's monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in the previous financial statements, are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise as income or as expense.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets
are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily
takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs
are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Further, interest
earned out of borrowed funds from temporary investments is reduced from the borrowing
cost.

Financial Instrument:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(t) Financial Asset:

Initial recognition and measurement

Ali financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through P&L, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, purchase or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place are recognized on the trade date i.e. the date that
the company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified as
measured at:







